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TO:  ALL POTENTIAL BIDDERS 
 
FROM:  H. Ryan Bolles 
  DSCYF – Contract Administrator 
 
SUBJECT: ADDENDUM TO REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) – CYF1008-FACTS II QA 
      

ADDENDUM #10 
 
 
Answers to all questions received by the 01/06/11 deadline are addressed below:  
 
 

Questions received by 1/6/2011 

QA  RFP Questions 

Question Response 

Section 1.3.6, Proposal Instructions, 
Proposal Format, page 13. The RFP states 
“Proposals shall be printed on 8 ½” x 11” paper 
and in a 12‐point sans serif font for all text. The 

Bidder‟s response to the requirements matrix, 
which is attached as Appendix E, must be in 
Arial Narrow, 10 point font.” Is the requirements 
matrix actually in Appendix A? Also, please 
clarify that it is acceptable to use Arial Narrow 
10 in tables and other exhibits throughout the 
body of the proposal. 

Proposals for the DD & I vendor require a 
response to each requirement in Arial 
Narrow 10 point, the requirements matrix is 
appendix E of the DD & I RFP.  

It is acceptable to use Arial Narrow 10 in 
tables and other exhibits throughout the 
body of the proposal.  

Subsection 5.2, Major Services, page 39. 
Please clarify what is meant by “Validating 
through system, integration and user 
acceptance testing to include regression testing 
of existing functionality . . .“. Does this imply that 
the QA vendor is to conduct independent 
system, integration and user acceptance testing 
cycles? 

The QA vendor will participate in the 
process, but actual testing will be performed 
mainly by DSCYF. The QA Vendor will have 
a review evaluate role as well as participate 
in and provide guidance to DSCYF in test 
plan development. 

Subsection 5.2, Major Services, page 40. 
Please clarify what is meant by “support the 
execution of appropriate test plans . . .“. Is the 
State expecting the QA vendor to manage DD&I 
testing teams and/or execute test scripts as part 
of those teams? 

The QA vendor will participate in the 
process, but actual testing will be performed 
mainly by DSCYF. The QA Vendor will have 
a review and evaluate role as well as 
participate in and provide guidance to 
DSCYF in test plan development.  

Subsection 5.3.1, Project Initiation, System 
Design Evaluation, page 41. The requirements 
for the QA vendor is to provide and evaluation 
based on the GSD, DSD, and SBP of the DD&I 
contractor. It seems that the timing of the 

It is anticipated that the Quality assurance 
vendor will provide feedback to DSCYF on 
the DD & I Vendors: 

 General System Design,  

 Detailed System Design,  



evaluation would not be feasible at project 
initiation. Please clarify. 

 System Build Plan  
As submitted in the DD & I Proposals and 
negotiated during the project negation 
phase. It is also recognized that these are 
“Living Documents” and may change 
throughout the project.  

Subsection 5.3.3, Responsibilities 
throughout the DD&I Phase, page 42. Please 
clarify what deliverable is being  referred to in 
the last sentence of the  penultimate paragraph 
– “Deliverable will be complete when approved 
by the State” 

The state will determine when any specific is 
complete and acceptable to the state.   

Subsection 5.4, Reporting and 
Administrative Requirements, page 43. 
Please clarify what Weekly Project Work Plan 
Updates are being requested or consist of. Is it 
correct to assume that these are updates to a 
QA Work Plan? Or is this an assessment of the 
DD&I‟s Work Plan updates? 

The weekly project work plan updates are 
updates to the Quality Assurance work 
plans. 

Subsection 5.4.5, II DD & I Vendor 
Deliverable Reviews, page 45. The State is 
required to provide a response to each DD & I 
vendor‟s deliverable or module within seven (7) 
business days of receipt of the deliverable. How 
many of these days are allocated to the QA 
vendor for review of the materials and the 
production of the Deliverable Review Report for 
State review? If the vendor delivers multiple 
documents that are to be reviewed by the QA 
vendor within the same seven day interval, can 
these timeframe be adjusted for those 
deliverables? 

These times have been adjusted to give the 
state 10 days to respond to the DD & I 
Deliverables and the QA Vendor 7 days to 
respond to the State.  

 

Section 6.1, Work Space, page 47. How many 
cubicles/workstation are being allocated for the 
QA Services vendor? 

The office layout has not yet been finalized; 
DSCYF would request that Bidders on the 
QA RFP state their space requirements.  

Section 6.2, Quality Assurance Contractor 
Staff Time, Commitment, & Availability, page 
47. (1) The RFP requires a detailed work plan 
be submitted and further states that staff duties 
including code review be detailed. However in 
Section 6.3, Proposal Response Requirements, 
the requirement for a QA schedule of activities is 
described as a high level summary. Could 
DSCFY please clarify the requirement for a QA 
Work Plan for this proposal? Could DSCFY also, 
please clarify the requirement for code review 
conducted by the QA vendor as it is not 
referenced outside of section 6.2? (2) In the 
phrase “may take place possibly within” the word 
„may‟ seems to be highlighted and the word 

The QA work plan accompanying the 
proposal should be at a summery level with 
as much accompanying detail as possible. 
Since much of the QA work plan will follow 
the DD & I plan, it is anticipated that it will 
follow and be integrated into the DD & I work 
plan. 
 
Currently DSCYF does not anticipate a 
mandated code review as part of the QA 
Process, the QA vendor may however 
propose this as part of their approach to 
Quality Assurance.  



„possibly‟ appears to be struck out. Can you 
confirm? 

Section 6.3 Proposal Response 
Requirements, page 49. The RFP states, 
“Bidder responses to Support Federal Review 
should be included as a subsection in the 
Approach to the Project, Methodology and 
Products proposal Does the Approach to the 
Project, Methodology and Products section 
refer to the Proposal Content subsection 6.5.5 
Bidder‟s Approach to the Project? And, should 
all of the described requirements within RFP 
Section 6.3 also be addressed in proposal 
subsection 6.5.5? 

Yes.  

Section 6.5, Proposal Content, page 50. The 
RFP states, “Each proposal must include the 
sections listed below. Section 7.2 – Technical 
Proposal Outline contains definitions of each 
section.” Please clarify if Organization and 
Staffing, Key Factors Influencing Bidder‟s 
Organizational Approach, Project Organization, 
Staffing, and Role(s) of Subcontractors(s) are 
each a separate section in bidder‟s proposal 
response or are Key Factors Influencing 
Bidder‟s Organizational Approach, and Project 
Organization, Staffing, and Role(s) of 
Subcontractors(s) are  subsections to 
Organization and Staffing (as implied in section 
6.5.6)? 

Yes.  Each are subsections to the 
Organizational Approach.   

Section 6.5, Proposal Content, page 50. The 
RFP states, “Each proposal must include the 
sections listed below. Section 7.2 – Technical 
Proposal Outline contains definitions of each 
section.” Please clarify if Quality Assurance and 
Control Procedures, and Approach to Quality 
Management Plan update are subsections to 
Project Planning and Management section of the 
bidder‟s proposal response? 

Quality Assurance and Control Procedures 
and Approach to Quality Management Plan 
update can be submitted as subsections to 
Project Planning and Management section of 
the bidder‟s proposal, or as their own 
section. 

The QMP lists eleven deliverables beginning on 
page 5 that match the Cost Milestones 
contained in Appendix A except for the eleventh 
one which is biweekly status, issues log and 
progress reports. How should the cost of these 
deliverable be presented? 

The Quality Management plan is out of date. 
The RFP is correct, however the incremental 
costs of these items can be included in the 
Proposer‟s Bid if desired.  Please remember 
it is anticipated that the QA vendor‟s contract 
will be T&M.   

There are several QA milestones or  
deliverables that are associated with testing (test 
strategy and test plans with expected results). It 
is not clear if the QA vendor is responsible for 
conducting test execution activities defined by 
the planning and strategy milestones. Please 

The QA vendor will participate in the 
process, but actual testing will be performed 
mainly by DSCYF. The QA Vendor will have 
a review and evaluate role as well as 
participate in and provide guidance to 
DSCYF in test plan development.  



clarify the State‟s expectations regarding test 
execution. 

Are firms that assisted in the development of 
FACTS II requirements prohibited from bidding 
on the QA RFP or any of the other RFPs? 

No, Firms are only prohibited from bidding 
on RFP‟s they had a direct role in 
developing.  

Can you please provide any PAPDs, IAPDs or 
APDUs related to the FACTS II project that have 
been either submitted or approved? 

The latest IAPD will be provided.  

Page 48 of the QA RFP states: “As part of their 
proposal responses, QA Bidders are required to 
provide a Quality Management plan (see 
Appendix B).”  However, other areas of the RFP 
(pg. 39, 44) discuss updates required to the 
Quality Management Plan.  Can you please 
clarify whether the expectation is for the RFP 
response to include an updated Quality 
Management Plan, or a description of the 
approach for periodic updates to the Quality 
Management Plan?  

A description of the QA Vendors approach 
for updating, DSCYF would appreciate that 
the plan be updated to the extent possible to 
provide us with more insight into the QA 
bidder   

In the RFP, under section 5.2, it is stated that 
the QA vendor is responsible for “reviewing and 
evaluating the System, Integration, Regression, 
Pilot (if applicable) and User Acceptance Test 
Plans developed by the FACTS II DD&I 
vendor.”  The Quality Management Plan, which 
was attached to the RFP, indicates under 
Section 2.1 Project Testing Team 
Responsibilities, that the QA Vendor is 
responsible for Integration, System and 
Acceptance Test Plans and Reports.  Can you 
please clarify if the QA vendor or the DDI vendor 
will be responsible for developing the 
Integration, System and Acceptance Test Plans 
and Reports? 

The QA Vendor is responsible for the review 
and evaluation of the QA plans. The QA 
vendor will participate in the process, but 
actual testing will be performed mainly by 
DSCYF. The QA Vendor will have a review 
and evaluate role as well as participate in 
and provide guidance to DSCYF in test plan 
development.  

Please clarify if the invoicing/payments will be 
based on fixed price deliverables or time and 
material and how the milestones will be 
determined.  

The invoicing/payments will be based on 
time and materials. The deliverables are 
contained in Section 5.3 of the RFP and are 
also listed on the Facts II Project Quality 
Assurance Cost Sheet at the end of 
Appendix A.  The QA estimated deliverables 
milestone dates will be based on the DD&I 
vendor‟s development schedule. 

Will the State be willing to cap the QA 
contractor‟s liability at some specified amount, 
such a 1X the contract value? 

 

The amount of the QA contractor‟s liability 
can be determined during contract 
negotiations.  

On the Project Experience form for completed 
projects, in the first section on “Project 
Information” – for “Your Contract Manager‟s 

This section asks for the name of the 
Contact Person (and phone number) and 
“Your Contract Manager‟s Name.”  The 



Name” do you want the actual program manager 
or our contract‟s person (me).   

 

 

name of the Contact Person should be the 
name of the person at the Corporation/Gov. 
or Agency so that they can be contacted by 
DSCYF for a reference check on the 
vendor‟s performance on the specified 
project.  The name to be provided for “Your 
Contract Manager‟s Name” is the vendor‟s 
contract manager for that project. 

We have had a number of questions related to 
the experience of potential bidders for FACTS II 
QA   

The contractor must have 3 years of 
experience in a development effort, not 
necessary as a programmer but that would 
qualify.  Other qualifying roles in a 
development project could be Project 
Manager, Analyst, Testing Quality 
Assurance Analyst or other roles involved in 
a project of similar magnitude.  This is not 
intended to be an all inclusive list.  

 
 
All other terms and conditions remain the same. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 302-633-2701 or Herbert.Bolles@state.de.us 

 

mailto:Herbert.Bolles@state.de.us

